
Approved 11/3/2011 

MINUTES 
COMMERCIAL REVITALIZATION COMMITTEE 

VILLAGE OF LA GRANGE PARK 
September 29, 2011 

Village Hall 
447 N. Catherine Avenue 
La Grange Park, Illinois 

7:00 P.M. 
 
 Chairman LaVelle Topps called the Commercial Revitalization Committee (CRC) 
meeting to order at 7:10 p.m. on Thursday, September 29, 2011, in the Conference Room 
of the Village Hall, 447 N. Catherine Avenue, La Grange Park, Illinois. 
 
Present:  Chairman LaVelle Topps 

Trustee Patricia Rocco,  
Trustee Susan Storcel  

 
Also Present:  Village Manager Julia Cedillo 

Village Clerk Amanda Seidel,   
Fire Chief Dean Maggos 
Sheri Sauer- President, La Grange Park Business Association and 
Resident 1525 Alima Terrace, 
Brian Harger- NIU Regional Development Institute  
Ann Wiegand- Resident 820 N. Kensington 
Herb Massin-Resident 

 
 
Village Clerk Seidel stated that a quorum was present.  Chairman Topps said the first item 
was the approval of the minutes from the August 18, 2011 meeting.  Committee Member 
Rocco said “I move to approve the minutes of the August 18, 2011 Commercial 
Revitalization Committee Meeting.”  Trustee Storcel seconded the motion. The motion to 
approve passed unanimously on a voice vote.  
 
Chairman Topps began the meeting by leading discussion of Agenda Item #3 and 
introduced Brian Harger, a representative from the Center for Governmental Studies. Two 
handouts were presented to the committee. 
 
Discussion with Brian Harger, representative from the Center for Governmental Studies 
 
Brian Harger had just returned from a tour of the Village by Chief Maggos and had a few 
comments regarding our Village. He said the Village has widely dispersed business areas 
which creates a challenge. He was also surprised to see Jewel on a side street. 
 
He then informed the board of some studies that have been done including the Whiteside 
County Project and the economic impacts. He asked how the Village can better utilize 
what we have including the website and the importance of keeping information organized. 
 



Village Manager Cedillo asked about economic development trends in regards to local 
municipalities and government. She also asked what type of information communities are 
looking for regarding economic development programs including certain programs, data 
and services to strengthen economic development programs. 
 
Brian Harger commented that we should focus on our current businesses and utilize 
resources that we already have. He used Rockford as an example of the 15 outside 
companies they recruited only 1 or 2 companies, which became globalized, left the city 
limits. 
 
Village Manager Cedillo asked if other communities encourage residents to open 
businesses. Brian Harger said it is important to work with school districts and 
Entrepreneurship programs, these programs are popular in rural communities where there 
is a coalition between local communities. Chief Maggos pointed out that the students at 
Riverside Brookfield High School opened and ran a store as part of a business program. 
 
Village Manager Cedillo asked Brian Harger what he noticed when he toured the Village of 
LaGrange Park. Again he commented about Jewel being located on a side street and how 
it doesn’t seem to be the most profitable place for a business, he also commented that we 
have many small businesses and that it seems that we have a fairly low vacancy rate due 
to these economic times. 
 
Village Manager Cedillo informed the Committee that in May 2008 a redevelopment study 
for the 31st Street Corridor was done. She asked if there is any feasibility for 
redevelopment and asked for recommendations. There was brief discussion of the 31st 
Street Corridor study. Studies look at project cost, land cost and investments return. The 
issue the Village faces is that businesses are service oriented instead of retail businesses. 
Municipalities would have to invest money for land acquisition and reconfiguring. 
 
Trustee Topps asked Brian where he thought the NIU Regional Development Institute 
could help. He informed Brian Harger that he asked him to attend the committee meeting 
after seeing an article in the local paper. Brian Harger said they can help and give advice 
on setting up website, getting data inline and training people on how to help themselves. 
 
Village Manager Cedillo informed the committee that data is being gathered by the Village 
Intern. The goal is to assemble a visual presentation of each brick and mortar business 
site. The other goal is to have a map of businesses throughout town with key 
characteristics, contact person so an individual can go to the website and have a 
comprehensive map of all businesses. Brain Harger commented that other communities 
have their site and building inventory integrated with a GIS System, Chief Maggos 
commented that La Grange Park does not have a GIS System. Village Manager Cedillo 
asked what the county has and what they offer to municipalities, Brian Harger commented 
the county can help as a marketing tool. 
 
Ann Wiegand asked if it would make sense to aggregate information to realtors. Brian 
Harger commented that the objective is to have a user friendly website and the Village 
should look into DCEO who has a program building inventory system for Industrial 
Businesses. 



 
Village Manager Cedillo commented on the many advance applications and software out 
there, mainly for commercial space, you can move you mouse over and information pops 
up. She likes having a master map with all spaces and everything at one glance. She 
commented that the map would be static and the key would change. Trustee Topps asked 
what the cost would be. Village Manager Cedillo said staff time to piece information 
together or it could be outsourced for a cost. Brian Harger commented to look at possible 
grant and funding opportunities. Sheri Sauer commented that a map would be helpful if 
she wanted to move her kitchen business, she also commented that demographics of a 
community are very important to business owners. 
 
Brian Harger commented that businesses look at the surrounding communities in the 5 
mile radius as well as population, age, and affluence. We also have a lot of commuters in 
our Village.  
 
Village Manager Cedillo pointed out that the Village Intern Tracy is doing research of other 
communities’ websites and economic development pages. 
 
Brian Harger said there are some fiscal issues to take into consideration; cost, 
maintenance of websites and databases. He said it is nice to collaborate as much as 
possible. Committee members commented of the possible collaboration with the West 
Suburban Conference of Mayors, West Suburban Chamber of Commerce, Metropolitan 
Mayors Conference, other chambers and to look into other possible coalitions’. Sheri 
Sauer commented that Willowbrook and Burr Ridge Chamber have a luncheon which 
provides good information. Village Manager Cedillo stated that she has already sent a 
letter to the Chamber of Commerce.  
 
Trustee Rocco asked Brian Harger what his fees are. He answered by explaining that 
Northern Illinois University used to subsidize programs through the state, now the Institute 
is a contract arm of the University. NIU pay salaries and benefits and projects are bid out 
by a flat fee or by hourly rate. Fees provide services, deliverables and activities.  Their last 
project was $106,000 which the USDA paid $99,000. They also help clients find grant 
funding. This encourages regional studies; the federal USDA wants to see regional 
collaboration for funding. 
 
Brian Harger commented that the 2010 census info is going to the web and it will be a new 
data source to utilize. Anne Wiegand and Village Manager Cedillo commented on the 
difficulty to navigate through the US Census Bureau website. 
 
Village Manager Cedillo asked Brain Harger what tools can we capitalize on and what 
resources can we utilize. Chief Maggos asked what works and what doesn’t work and 
where do we focus are efforts. Brian Harger said he will send a PowerPoint presentation 
that he used for a public administration class. The Committee thanked Brian Harger for his 
time, Brian Harger then left the committee meeting at 8:28 pm. 
 
Chairman Topps then moved on to the next Agenda Item which was the Mission and 
Vision Statements. 
 



CRC Mission and Vision Statements 
 
Trustee Topps asked which proposed Mission Statement Ideas the committee like best. 
Trustee Topps liked #2 “The Purpose of the Commercial Revitalization Committee is to 
assist and guide in the creation of a vibrant business community by recommending 
programs and actions that foster business retention, expansion and new business 
attraction in the Village of La Grange Park.” Trustee Storcel commented that all mission 
statement ideas are excellent but she would choose #2 as well.  Trustee Rocco chose #3 
as her first choice “The purpose of the La Grange Park Commercial Revitalization 
Committee is to provide guidance in the Village’s efforts in fostering a vibrant business 
community where the Village supports and encourages business retention and expansion, 
and new business attraction”. 
 
After a brief discussion it was agreed unanimously by voice vote to make “The Purpose of 
the Commercial Revitalization Committee is to assist and guide in the creation of a vibrant 
business community by recommending programs and actions that foster business 
retention, expansion and new business attraction in the Village of La Grange Park” the 
new mission statement for the Commercial Revitalization Committee of La Grange Park. 
 
Trustee Storcel commented that she likes the statement because is says what the 
committee is trying to do. Trustee Topps asked if we could bold retention, expansion and 
attraction, Trustee Storcel and Trustee Rocco did not like the idea to bold the three terms. 
 
The discussion then moved to the Vision Statement. Trustee Topps asked the committee 
which proposed Vision Statement Ideas the committee like best. Trustee Topps said he 
liked #3 “Our Vision for the Village of La Grange Park is to be a catalyst to stimulate 
business growth within the community. We will achieve this vision by: A. Having a clear 
understanding of our business community and the needs of our residents. B. Supporting 
and encouraging new businesses to locate in La Grange Park, progressing toward a 
vibrant and expanding business community. C. Encourage current businesses to expand 
their operations within L Grange Park. D. Meet the needs of our business community by 
increasing the dialogue between the business community and the Village La Grange Park. 
E. Assist in the facilitation of the development, improvements, and vitality of our key 
commercial areas: The Village Market, 31st Street, and Barnsdale Light Industrial.” Trustee 
Topps said he would like to switch the order of b and d. Trustee Storcel said she did not 
feel we need “e”. Trustee Rocco said she is torn between #1 and #3. Village Manager 
Cedillo commented that #3 visualizes the role and #1 visualizes the community and #2 
was concise. Trustee Topps said he would like to change part “e” in #3. Sheri Sauer said 
“e” is important to keep in and a key to a vision statement. By consensus it was decided to 
add 31st Street “Corridor” in part “e”. It was then by consensus to change “Barnsdale 
Manufacturing District” in part “e”. Then discussion turned to adding “f” to the vision stating 
“to improve sustainability and quality of life for residents for La Grange Park.” 
 
After the new mission and vision statements were decided upon, Trustee Topps moved on 
to the next item. 
 
Forbes.com Marketing 
 



Village Manager Cedillo passed out a sample of what the 5 wooden signs would look like. 
They would be placed under the Village Entry signs and say “Named by Forbes Among 
America’s 20 Most Stable Housing Market!”. The sample was designed by Signs by Slack 
who also created the Village Entry signs. Trustee Topps asked to see a drawing of the 
Entry sign with the sample below. Trustee Storcel commented that it is a misleading 
statement, since the date is not on there, and unsure if we will have any return on the 
money we spend for signs, she is reconsidering her decision. Trustee Rocco asked Sheri 
Sauer if the signs would have an impact on her as a business owner. Village Manager 
Cedillo informed the committee that the cost would be $1600 for all 5 two-sided, hand 
painted wooden signs. 
 
Discussion began regarding the effectiveness of the signs. Trustee Topps said it would 
show how stable a Village we are. Village Manager Cedillo said signs are made for 
distinction, and shows there are evidence of a good housing market and it shows civic 
pride. Herb Massin commented that it is a spectacular, unique distinction that we should 
take advantage of. Trustee Topps said it would show La Grange Park as a distinct 
community. Sheri Sauer pointed out that Western Springs has signs as safest community. 
Herb Massin asked if realtors would sponsor signs, since it could help there business. 
Trustee Rocco said she or Village Manager Cedillo will call realtors. 
 
Discussion began regarding the design of the sign, after discussion the following decision 
were made. The date of the magazine article will be added to the bottom of the sign. The 
Forbes logo will be made smaller and put towards the bottom of the sign. Font will be 
changed. 
 
Trustee Topps said the next agenda item; the discussion of the Action Plan will take place 
at the next meting. 
 
Village Manager Cedillo informed the committee she will get an information packet from 
the Interns research on what other communities are doing in regards to websites and 
business inventory. 
 
NEXT MEETING DATE 
 
 The Committee agreed to meet again on Thursday, November 3, 2011, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 Trustee Storcel brought a motion to adjourn, Trustee Rocco seconded the motion. 
The motion to adjourn passed unanimously on a voice vote. With no further business to 
come before the Committee, Chairman Topps declared the meeting adjourned at 9:20 p.m. 
 
       Respectfully Submitted 
 
       Amanda G. Seidel 
       Village Clerk 


